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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Dr. Norman L. Lee House most closely resembles the late Classical Revival
Architectural style, but it fits better into the style described by Philip Dole, a
notable architect in Oregon, as the "western farm house". Prof. Dole goes on to
say this farm house style is a group of "plain rural homes built in the Willamette
Valley [of Oregon] which do not conform comfortably within any national stylistic
architectural vogue."

The Lee house is a combination of two stages of construction. The builders
are unknown. The smaller one story part with simple gable roof that forms the
back portion of the house was moved from Lancaster, a town two miles north of
Junction City. The move was made the last part of September or the first week in
October of 1871. The building date of that portion is unknown. The two story por-
tion was built at the present site in 1878.

The Lee house is characterized by a strong simplicity of form and a lack of
stylistic pretention. It is composed of a large rectangular main block roofed with
a simple gable. The construction is wood throughout. The stud walls are finished
with cedar clapboard on the exterior and plaster on the interior. Wood joists hold
fir floors and wood rafters carrying a shingled roof. A kitchen shed is attached to
the west end. This room predates the main house. Square hand-forged nails are used.

The handsome entrance porch is on the east end which is the street facade.
Ornamentation in the house is confined almost exclusively to this porch. The north
and south walls are strong planes punctuated with well proportioned windows of the
double hung type. The south wall is especially fine in overall composition and
distinction of detail. As in other buildings of this type, detailing is simple and
direct, serving a clear functional, as well as compositional, purpose. The condition
of the exterior is very good, a credit to the soundness of construction and quality
of materials.

The interior is also characterized by a straightforward simplicity. The entrance
and stair hall occupy the northeast corner. This common arrangement protects the
entrance from the prevailing southwest winds during the winter months. A small but
fine sitting room is in the south east corner. A living room and dining room are in
the center of the house and are served by the kitchen which occupies the back shed.

The upstairs consists of two large and two small bedrooms. The master bedroom
is on the southeastern end. The generosity of window openings and room height (11 feet
on the first floor) is most evident as there is an abundance of natural light and
pleasing movement. It was Dr. Lee's feeling that 1ight and air are fundamental to
good health,

The house is not entirely in its original state. A small interior bathroom has
been added to the kitchen wing replacing a side porch. Another bath has replaced the
small upstairs southeast bedroom. The dining and 1iving room ceilings have been Towered.
The entrance porch and eastern wall have been altered in a succession of projects to
update the entrance facade. The last of these changes in the 1950s replaced the two
second story windows and door with onelarge central window. The porch was removed and

replaced with a metal canopy which covered the entrance transom. A carport with two

storage sheds were added to the back of the house. .
(continued)
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In 1974, the entrance porch was restored and plans were drawn for the restoration
of the three upper openings. The ceiling of the dining and living rooms can be easily
restored to its original height. These projects completed, the house would be a very
good example of the 19th century "western farm house."
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Junction City was established in about 1870 when Ben Holladay planned his railroad
through the west side of the Willamette Valley. Dr. Norman L. Lee and many residents
of the nearby town, Lancaster, moved their businesses and houses to Junction City when
they realized that the railroad would bypass their town. Dr. Lee's house, used as his
residence and office, was architecturally similar to many other Willamette Valley houses
built during the same period.

Ben Holladay, the colorful transportation magnate of Oregon, had taken control of
the Oregon and California Railroad in 1869 and was building the route from Portland
through the east side of the Willamette Valley. In about 1870, Holladay conceived of
a westside railroad that would join the eastside route at some point north of Eugene.
After studying the possibilities, Junction City was decided upon as the "junction"
point. Junction City literally developed as a transportation town and its nearby
neigh bor, Lancaster (a shipping point on the Willamette River), faded into oblivion.
The eastside railroad finally passed through Junction City late in 1871, but the
westside route was not established until much later. Fifty years later, when the
Pacific Highway 99 was constructed through the Willamette Valley, the east and west
branches appropriately joined at Junction City.

Dr. Norman L. Lee moved to Junction City from Lancaster in 1871. His house was
moved from Lancaster, as was the post office and several business buildings. After
Dr. Lee retired from his practice, the house/office was used by three later doctors
in Junction City. Because of its use as the local doctor's office, the Lee House
has strong local significance.

Architecturally, the Lee House most closely fits in the late Greek Revival
Style, but it is more correctly referred to as a "western farm house" (as in the
descriptive section). The Junction City Historical Society has tastefully restored
the Lee House and they are currently using it as their museum. The plain yet attrac-
tive architectural style and its historical relationship to Junction City makes the
Lee House an appropriate local landmark.

Norman L. Lee (ca. 1834-1919) was the son of Philester Lee, an Oregon Trail pioneer
of 1847 who took up a donation land claim in Lebanon. Norman L. Lee enlisted for service
in the Civil War as a member of Company F, First Regiment, Oregon Infantry. Later, durin
Indian uprisings 1865-1866, he was stationed at Ft. Lapwai in Idaho. While at the latter
post he studied medicine and surgery under Dr. George K. Smith, U.S. Army surgeon. Lee
then went on to study at Willamette University in Salem, Oregon, and was graduated in
1871. He enjoyed a long and successful career, having practiced medicine in Lancaster,
Lebanon and Junction City prior to his demise in 1919 at the age of 85.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lot 3 and North % of Lot 4, Block 58, Plat of Junction City.
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